
1 

 

 

 
MEETING: HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING 

GROUP 
  
DATE: Tuesday 1st March, 2016 
  
TIME: 10.00 am 
  
VENUE: Birkdale Room, Town Hall, Southport 

  
Members & Associations 
 
South Sefton Hackney Carriage Drivers Association 
Richard Jarman 
Chris Snellgrove 
 
North West Taxi Association 
(Vacant) 
 
North Sefton Night Drivers Association 
(Vacant) 
 
Southport Station Hackney Carriage Association 
John Murrison 
Barry Howard 
 
Berry Street Garage 
Joe Johnson 
 
Aintree Garages 
Mike Denning 
 
Delta Merseyside Ltd 
Paul McLaughlin 
Gary Beesley 
 
Sefton Private Hire Fleet Operators Association 
Mark Sanders 
 
Uber 
Neil McGonigle 
 
Ability Network 
Paula Hodson 
 
Officers 
Mark Toohey (Chair), Principal Trading Standards Officer 
Mike Foulkes, Senior Taxi Licensing Officer 
 
MEETING OFFICER: Liz Risley 
Email: liz.risley@sefton.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



2 

 
  
 



3 

 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank.



4 

A G E N D A 
 
 

 Item 
No. 

Subject/Author(s)   

  

  1. Apologies for Absence 
 

  

  2.  Minutes  (Pages 7 - 
12) 

  Minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 
2015 
 

  

  3. Matters Arising from the Minutes 
 

  

  4. Final outcome of Reserve Account Review  (Pages 13 - 
14) 

  At the meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee on 25 January 2016 it was resolved 
that; 
 
(1) the backdating of cost allocation charges to 
the Taxi Reserve Account to 2011/12 be 
approved; 
 
(2) the fees (attached) be uplifted by 11% in 
2016/17 and the under recovery of costs is 
covered by the revised Taxi Reserve balances; 
 
(3) the fees be uplifted by a further 11% in 
2017/18 and, if required, the Taxi Reserve 
balances will be used to support any shortfall of 
allocated costs; and 
 

(4) the fees be increased annually in line with 
the appropriate cost of service delivery from 
2018/19.To discuss the outcome of the recent 
review and the pending fee increase.  
 

  

  5. Feedback from Spokespersons meeting  (Pages 15 - 
22) 

  Minutes from the annual spokespersons 
meeting held on 26 January 2016 attached for 
information and comments.  
 

  

  6. Enforcement 
 

  

  7. Knowledge Test  (Pages 23 - 
26) 



5 

  To discuss issues/amendments to the current 
knowledge test. 
 
Sefton are currently running 2 different tests 
until 31 March 2016.  
 

  

  8. Testing Station Review   

  Initial ideas for consideration from the sub 
group; 
 

1. Use of DVSA traffic light coding 
2. Maximum number of stations – how 

many are needed? 
3. New service level agreements 
4. Clear definitions of defects and checking 

methods 
5. More regular liaison 
6. Reporting on statistics from testing 

stations 
7. Training and funding 
8. 8 and 11 year old assessments 
9. Seating arrangements of vehicles  

 

  

  9. Handbook   

  To discuss handbook and conditions contained 
therein.  
 

  

  10. Licence Fees   

  Item requested by Richard Jarman. 
 

• Please provide a copy of the one stop 
shop costing in so far as it relates to taxi 
& private hire services. 

• Provide consequent future projections 
based on calculations for SMBC 

  
 

  

  11. Vehicle Licences   

  Item requested by Richard Jarman. 
 
How many PHV licences were in force at 
31/01/15 and at 31/01/16  
 

  

  12. Operator Licences   

  Item requested by Richard Jarman. 
 
SMBC operators with offices (& licensed firms) 
in other areas are using telephone numbers of 
these other organizations in respect of SMBC 

  



6 

licensed entities. Using an operator outside 
Sefton directly is contrary to the licensing 
regime. 
 
Note that each licensed operation is a separate 
body under S55A - this is independent of any 
review by ‘legal’? 
 
Clearly SMBC must have the same operational 
control & scrutiny over each licensee. Each 
licensed body MUST have a natural person 
available at any one time? 
 
It is accepted that for ‘one man bands’ or ones 
with very small fleets that may not be 
necessary. 
 
A company that advertises a full people moving 
(AKA 'Taxi') service e.g. Alpha / UBER MUST 
have people available to deal with matters that 
may not simply be for bookings 
  
 

  13. Mitigations   

  Item requested by Richard Jarman. 
 
Discuss recent publicity about (effectively) the 
result of ‘mitigation’ in granting driver licence 
  
 

  

  14. One Stop Shop   

  Item requested by Richard Jarman. 
 

• How many chip and pin machines are 
there for the OSS?  When were they 
purchased and when were they last 
used? 

• Is the annual DBS checking service 
available in the OSS? 

 
Item requested by Joe Johnson 
 

• Can the trade be supplied with full 
costings for the OSS?  A breakdown of 
service and running costs for each 
month and annual.  

 

  

  15. Date of next meeting.  TBA 
 

  

  16. Any Other Business   



7 

  In accordance with Minute No. 37 (iii) of the 
meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee of 24 February 2003, other business 
may only be considered if agreed by the Chair 
and a majority of the trade and if it is of an 
urgent nature. i.e. requires consideration prior 
to the next scheduled meeting of the Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Joint Trade Working 
Group. 
  
 

  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP 
 

MEETING HELD AT THE COMMITTEE ROOM, TOWN HALL, BOOTLE 
ON MONDAY 30TH NOVEMBER, 2015 

 
PRESENT:  
 
Member/Association: 
 
South Sefton Hackney Carriage Drivers Association 
Richard Jarman 
Chris Snellgrove 
 
Delta 
Gary Beesley 
 
Berry St Garage 
Joe Johnson 
 
Brookfield Drive Garage 
Mike Denning 
 
Uber 
Neil McGonigle 
 
 
 
Officers 
 
Mark Toohey (Chair), Principal Trading Standards Officer 
Mike Foulkes, Senior Taxi Licensing & Enforcement Officer 
Terry Wood, Environmental health & Licensing Manager 
 
MEETING OFFICER: Colin Auty 
Email: colin.auty@sefton.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 2

Page 9



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
MONDAY 30TH NOVEMBER, 2015 
 

2 

 
 
 

 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
 
Mark Sanders – Delta Garages 
Paul McLaughlin – Delta 
 
 
 

 MINUTES  

 
RJ – Queried the removal of point 4 in the Sefton license conditions not 
being recorded. This is subsequently covered in agenda point 8. Apart 
from this, the minutes were agreed as a true record. 
 
 

 MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES  

 
JJ – Asked for individual figures on stop notices issued 
 
MT – Stated these can be provided and apologised for them not being 
included for todays meeting. 
 
 

 TAXI LICENSING RESERVE ACCOUNT  

 
MT – Read council statement to group members concerning the reserve 
account, the uplifting of fees and the amount that will potentially be taken 
from the reserve account and backdated.  Brief overview of the PWC 
report and spreadsheet that had already been circulated. 
 
RJ – I have read this report. It does not seem to be a joint report. 
However, it does appear that SMBC has done its best to comply with 
legislation. I have no objection as to how the surplus is used. I have 
submitted the report to an accountant and I am awaiting their response. 
 
CS – perhaps licence fees should have been raised as required over the 
years rather than building up a reserve and keeping fees at the same 
level. 
 
JJ – I do not fully understand this report as I am not an accountant but I do 
not have any issues and am happy with it. 
 
RJ –I have no objections to cost recovery going back to 2011/12.  
 
JJ – Queried the figures going forward – how can best value be 
established for future costs. He also objects to recovery going back 5 
years as errors have been made by the council and not the trade. Mr. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 10



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
MONDAY 30TH NOVEMBER, 2015 
 

3 

Johnson would rather go back just four years and have a larger reserve 
account. 
 
RJ – Agrees with Joe’s comments about retrospective financial adjustment 
not being fair on the trade. Also stated that he would like some of the 
budget to be spent on driver training. 
 
JJ – Four years is a reasonable timescale.  
 
This was backed up by panel members. Panel members were also happy 
with proposed fee increases and no objections to a proposed increase of 
11% per annum for the next 2 years. 
 
JJ – The council needs to be more accountable in future for how trade 
income is spent by them and Arvato. 
 
CS – The trade are paying for the councils economic mistakes 
 
JJ – I do not feel we are getting value for money with Arvato and the OSS, 
although service has improved in recent years. 
 
MT – the purpose of the discussion was to examine the report and gauge 
the views of the trade but this will ultimately be a decision for members.  
Informed JJ that we can look at costings of materials etc. moving forward 
but that was not the purpose of the item today. 
 
 

 KNOWLEDGE TEST  

 
MT – Explained how the routes and places questions work 
 
JJ – Enquired whether the knowledge test can be reviewed annually? 
 
MT – The test will be reviewed by this group regularly now. 
 
CS – Re iterated his desire for the knowledge test to become an oral test. 
 
MT – Resources are an issue with that option and it may not be that easy 
to accommodate. 
 
JJ – Oral test is simply not an option cost wise. 
 
RJ – Expressed support for this option. 
 
MT – The council will consider this option. The council will also expect 
comments on the new routes moving forward so we can prevent any 
routes/places becoming outdated. 
 
 

 ENFORCEMENT  

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 11



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
MONDAY 30TH NOVEMBER, 2015 
 

4 

JJ – Bodywork is being treated differently for hackneys & phv’s, private 
hire vehicles are being treated a lot more harshly than hackney vehicles. 
 
RJ – Queried a Sefton PHV operator being licensed in Sefton but not 
having any PHV’s. 
 
MT – An operator does not have to have any vehicles  at any particular 
point in time in order to continue to hold a licence. 
 
RJ – I beg to differ – can this be looked at please? 
 
MT – Agreed to this. 
 
 

 DEREGULATION ACT  

 
RJ – A booking should be directed straight to an operator. Therefore, a 
piece of software deciding which operator to give the job to, this software 
will require an operators licence, consequently this is a legal breach. Mr. 
Jarman requested that this issue is looked into further. Mr. Jarman further 
asserted that section 55A of the act clarifies this requirement.  
 
JJ – This should be looked at nationally not locally. 
 
RJ – Sefton legal department is one of the best legal departments in the 
country, therefore, they should consider this issue as it has come to a 
head. 
 
JJ – This should be treated as a national issue and the panel should see 
how it develops on a national basis. 
 
RJ – The sefton legal department should forward this to the local 
government association. 
 
MT – Asked that the Delta and Uber reps submitted their legal opinions on 
this matter. Also stated he would take this issue to the spokespersons 
meeting in January. 
 
 

 HANDBOOK/PH CONDITIONS OF LICENCE  

 
RJ – In the absence of the requirement for a Sefton licensed vehicle, RJ 
would like this to read with the following extension: 
 
‘Except where the operator sub-contracts.’ 
 
MT – Can this not simply read that sub contracting must be done in 
compliance with s.55A. 
 
JJ – Has no issue with slight change in conditions wording. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 12



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
MONDAY 30TH NOVEMBER, 2015 
 

5 

 
 SPOKEN ENGLISH TEST  

 
MT – We have very few record of complaints regarding a drivers lack of 
spoken English. 
 
CS – Most current drivers would like a spoken English test for new drivers. 
A verbal knowledge test as described previously would achieve this goal. 
 
RJ – English literacy was covered in my VRQ. 
 
MT – We will consider the knowledge test query prior to this one. 
 
 

 OLDER VEHICLES  

 
JJ – Officers are not being consistent on the standards that need to be 
met, vehicles are being presented for test in a not exceptional condition 
after examination by an officer. This is causing confrontations at testing 
centres. The definition of exceptional needs to be more clearly defined by 
the council. 
 
TW – The definition of exceptional needs to be worked through by both the 
trade and the council.  
 
JJ – All enforcement staff are working to different standards. 
 
MT – This needs to be looked into further and perhaps the expected 
standard needs clarifying. 
 
CS – Up the age and then point blank refuse to grant new licences to 
vehicles over 10 years old for example. 
 
TW – We need to make sure conditions are not unreasonable. 
 
JJ – Testing Stations should all be meeting the same standards. Some of 
the issues here can be included in testing station review. 
 
 

 VEHICLE INSPECTIONS  

 
MT – Vehicle inspections cannot be done on spec at Magdalen House. 
 
JJ – It is not unreasonable for a member of staff to come down and look at 
a vehicle. Could officers provide mobile numbers? 
 
MT – agreed.  Inspection letters will now include better contact information 
so that alternative appointments can be made. 
 
 

 DRIVING TEST  

Agenda Item 2

Page 13



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
MONDAY 30TH NOVEMBER, 2015 
 

6 

 
It was decided amongst the panel members that this should not be 
implemented. 
 
 

 FUTURE WORKPLAN  

 
MT – Testing Station review - advised would complete this by March 2016. 
 
 

 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 
The next meeting will be the Licensing and Regulatory Spokespersons 
with Representatives from the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Trade 
meeting at Southport Town Hall on 26th January 2016 starting at 10am. 
 
 
(The following joint trade meeting will be held on 1 March 2016 at 
Southport Town Hall at 10:00am). 
 

 ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 
Lost property 
 
RJ – lost/found property is not something Merseyside police wish to deal 
with any more. 
 
JJ – Can we review this at the next meeting if we have issues this can be 
raised in due course. If no issues arise, then there is no need for concern. 
 
License Numbers 
 
MT – When drivers re-licence, they will be receiving updated numbers due 
to a new computer system that is being implemented for both vehicle and 
driver records. 
 
Complaints about drivers 
 
GB – Do we need to investigate complaints when drivers are not working? 
 
MT – We are going to get some new guidelines drawn up regarding this. 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 14



Sefton Council Proposed Taxi & Private Hire Fees and Charges 2016/17 

  2015/16 2016/17 

All Driver’s Licences  £ £ 

New & Renewal drivers licence fee (maximum of 3 years)  57.60 63.94 

    

  2015/16 2016/17 

All Vehicle Licences  £ £ 

Private Hire up to 8 years old 12 months 110.00 122.10 

Private Hire over 8 years old 6 months 64.00 71.04 

All Hackney Carriages up to eight years old ( * ) 12 months 110.00 122.10 

Non Metropolitan Hackney Cabs over eight years old ( ** ) 6 months 64.00 71.04 

Metropolitan Hackney cabs between 8-11 years ( * ) 12 months 110.00 122.10 

Metropolitan Hackney cabs over 11 years ( ** ) 6 months 64.00 71.04 

Horse Omnibuses - any age 12 months 100.00 111.00 

Pedicab Omnibuses 12 months 50.00 55.50 

(*) does not include £30 annual hackney rank levy    

(**) does not include £15 hackney rank levy    

  2015/16 2016/17 

All Private Hire Operator's Licences  £ £ 

Operate 1 to 2 vehicles  25.00 27.75 

Operate 3 to 50 vehicles  125.00 138.75 

Operate 51 to 100 vehicles  150.00 166.50 

Operate 100+ vehicles  175.00 194.25 

    

  2015/16 2016/17 

Miscellaneous Fees  £ £ 

Transfer of Hackney Driver licence to Private Hire  15.50 17.21 

Transfer of Private Hire Driver licence to Hackney  15.50 17.21 

Duplicate Licence (any type)  10.50 11.66 

Duplicate driver’s badge or internal Vehicle plate  5.00 5.55 

Duplicate External Vehicle Plate  10.50 11.66 

    

  2015/16 2016/17 

Minimum Solicitor & Road Traffic Accident Written Enquiry Response 
Fees 

£ £ 

If approved for release of data   30.00 33.30 

If no objections are received the proposed new fees will come into force with effect from 1
st
 April 

2016.  Where objections are received they will be given due consideration and if the Council decides 

to implement the proposed increases after consideration of objections received, the proposed fees 

will come into force with or without modification no later than 1
st
 May 2016. 

 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL-IN”

1

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE SPOKESPERSONS 
WITH REPRESENTATIVES OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 

PRIVATE HIRE TRADE

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE
ON  26 JANUARY 2016

Licensing and Regulatory Committee Spokesperson:

Councillor Kerrigan (Chair)

Hackney Carriage Trade Representatives:

Representing the South Sefton Hackney Carriage Drivers Association: 

Mr.Richard Jarman

Mr.Chris Snellgrove

Private Hire Trade Representatives:

Representing Delta Merseyside Limited

Mr. Paul McLaughlin

Representing Sefton Private Hire Fleet Operators Association

Mr. Mark Sanders

Representating Berry Street Garage Association

Mr Joseph Johnson

Representating Brookfield Garage

Mr Michael Denning

Advisory Member:
Ms.Paula Hodson

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bradshaw, Burns, 
Preece and Welsh

2. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 January, 2015 be confirmed as 
a correct record.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE SPOKESPERSONS 
WITH REPRESENTATIVES OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE TRADE- TUESDAY 26TH JANUARY, 2016

2

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interest were received.

4. ENFORCEMENT STATISTICS AND MITIGATION DATA 

The attendees considered information provided by the Principal Trading 
Standards Officer on statistics relating to the taxi licensing enforcement 
inspections for 2015; and new driver application statistics for 2015, 
providing information about approved and refused licence applications and 
reasons for refusal.

Paul McLaughlin explained the role of Delta’s fleet inspectors including 
their qualifications, frequency of inspections and the fact that the firm was 
now able to create a database from the information they had received from 
inspectors.

RESOLVED:

That the information be noted.

5. ONE STOP SHOP STATISTICS 

The attendees considered the statistics relating to taxi licensing 
appointments and knowledge tests at Bootle and Southport One Stop 
Shops and the total number of licence applications compared with 
previous years.

The Chair requested that the statistical information be presented in a more 
‘user-friendly’ format for future meetings.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the One Stop Shop statistics on knowledge tests and appointments 
be noted; and

(2) the Principal Trading Standards Officer be requested to present the 
statistical information in a more ‘user-friendly’ format for future 
meetings.

6. KNOWLEDGE TEST 

Attendees considered the new knowledge test which was running 
alongside the old test until the end of March 2016. The meeting were 
informed that the new routes and places, detailed within the accompanying 
documents, would be revised at the regular trade meetings.

Agenda Item 5

Page 18



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE SPOKESPERSONS 
WITH REPRESENTATIVES OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE TRADE- TUESDAY 26TH JANUARY, 2016

3

Paul McLaughlin expressed his disappointment that the Council had 
decided to retain the Knowledge Test; commenting that Knowsley Borough 
Council had decided to replace the formal test with a more relevant 
essential skills test. He warned that over the next few years there would be 
an increase in the number of Knowsley registered drivers and a decline in 
the number of Sefton registered drivers.

Richard Jarman suggested that proposals to conduct the Knowledge Test 
orally should be considered.

RESOLVED:

That the information supplied regarding the Knowledge Test be noted.

7. VRQ (VOCATIONALLY RELATED QUALIFICATIONS) 

Mark Toohey advised that the deadline for all drivers to have gained the 
Vocational Related Qualifications (VRQ) was 31 December, 2015. It was 
estimated that around 60 drivers did not complete the VRQ training / 
qualification and had allowed their licence to lapse. He continued that the 
majority of those who had let their licences lapse had probably decided to 
retire.

Paul McLaughlin said that this was a good news story. Sefton now had a 
100% fleet of drivers with relevant nationally recognised vocational 
qualification. He was aware that other authorities had used ‘grandfather 
rights’, but Sefton had avoided this soft option and should be singing its 
own praises.

RESOLVED: That 

(1) the information regarding VQRs be noted; and

(2) the Principal Trading Standards Officer be requested to liaise with 
the Press Office with regard to issuing a Press Release in relation 
to the VRQ qualification.

8. HANDBOOK 

Mark Toohey circulated a copy of Hackney Carriage, Private Hire and 
Omnibus Licensing Scheme Handbook (version 3.1).

The Chair commented that she was pleased to see that both 
‘safeguarding’ and the ‘wellbeing of the driver’ were addressed in the 
handbook.

Agenda Item 5

Page 19



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE SPOKESPERSONS 
WITH REPRESENTATIVES OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE TRADE- TUESDAY 26TH JANUARY, 2016

4

Paul McLaughlin commented that there was a big disparity between 
drivers’ lifestyles. Some drivers used the flexibility of the job to live a 
healthy lifestyle, whilst others would simply go from sitting driving all day to 
sitting in front of the television when off duty. Mark Toohey commented 
that some studies had shown a marked increase in prostate cancer 
amongst sedentary jobs like driving. Chris Snellgrove added that it was 
sometimes difficult when you were starting out in the trade as you had to 
work long hours which did not automatically lend itself to a healthy 
lifestyle.

Paul McLaughlin suggested that he could get his fleet inspectors to  carry 
and distribute copies of the handbook to drivers; he would also put it on 
the newsfeed.

Joseph Johnson said that he did not believe that Uber Cars used a tariff 
card. Mark Toohey replied that Uber Cars should carry tariff cards and he 
would check that this was the case. Richard Jarman said that he saw an 
Uber Car carrying so many gadgets the driver’s view of the highway would 
be obscured. Mark Sanders commented that no gadget should be 
attached to the ‘swipe zone’ on the windscreen.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the Handbook and its content be noted; and

(2) the Principal Trading Standards Officer be requested to check that 
Uber Cars were carrying the requisite tariff card.

9. CONSULTATION WITH TRADE 

Attendees considered a request from Richard Jarman: A change was 
made to the handbook following the implementation of the Deregulation 
Act (which allowed private hire operators to sub contract to any other 
licensed operator). Following this, it was agreed in the last trade meeting 
held on 30th November 2015 that all future changes would be discussed 
with the trade representatives prior to making any changes and the 
amendment that was made to the handbook would be revised. The 
existing consultation process should continue with increased effort for 
regional co-operation and harmonisation. 

Terry Wood commented that Sefton was committed to continuing meetings 
with the trade. Paul McLaughlin requested that, when necessary, legal 
officers attend future meetings to advise on possible areas of conflict.

RESOLVED:

Agenda Item 5

Page 20



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE SPOKESPERSONS 
WITH REPRESENTATIVES OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE TRADE- TUESDAY 26TH JANUARY, 2016

5

(1) the comments raised above be noted; and

(2) the Environmental Health & Licensing Manager be requested to 
liaise with the Head of Regulation and Compliance regarding the 
attendance of a legal officer when needed at  future trade meetings.

10. HACKNEY CARRIAGE STANDS 

Attendees considered a request from Richard Jarman: The ranks 
surrounding Bootle were regularly being used by the private hire trade.  He 
requested the assistance of the private hire operators in educating the 
drivers as to the legality of using official ranks. Paul McLaughlin replied 
that this was an enforcement matter. He was not about to lecture his 
drivers about matters of which they were already aware. Joseph Johnson 
added that many of the loading bays around the Strand were occupied by 
Hackney drivers. Attendees also commented that sometimes bus stops 
were also used as stopping points for cars; however, some stops ceased 
being bus stops after the bus service had ended for the night. Richard 
Jarman concluded that the use of ranks by private hire cars was 
excessive. 

RESOLVED:

That the discussion be noted.

11. COMPLIANCE CHECKS 

Attendees considered a request from Richard Jarman: Sefton should 
continue (by test purchase or otherwise) to check that only Sefton licensed 
vehicles ply for hire within the borough. Mark Sanders replied that there 
had been a request to use an outside agency to conduct test purchases 
but the Council had declined. Paul McLaughlin requested a report on the 
compliance checks to come to the trade meeting.

RESOLVED:

That the Environmental Health & Licensing Manager be requested to 
present a report to a future meeting of the Trade Group.

12. ROAD CONDITIONS 

Attendees considered a request from Richard Jarman: There were regular 
holes in local roads which caused severe damage to licensed vehicles.  
Nationally, there had been occasions when authorities compensated 
vehicle owners. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 21



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE SPOKESPERSONS 
WITH REPRESENTATIVES OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE TRADE- TUESDAY 26TH JANUARY, 2016

6

Mark Toohey replied that he would obtain information and report back to 
the Trade Group meeting.

RESOLVED:

That the Principal Trading Standards Officer be requested collate 
information on vehicular damage and compensation caused by holes in 
the road surface and report back to the Trade Group meeting.

13. TESTING STATIONS 

Attendees considered a request from by Joe Johnson: A review of the all 
the testing stations and conditions was about to start.  Would the Council 
agree to limit any new testing stations until the review was completed. He 
added that an overhaul of the test was required; many garages had never 
been told how to examine a Hackney Carriage, sometimes his garage had 
failed a vehicle only for the same vehicle to be passed by another garage.

Mark Toohey replied that this was a sensible suggestion whilst the review 
was on-going. Terry Wood added that that was the purpose of the review. 
It was a good idea to close the list until the review was completed.

RESOLVED:

That the discussion be noted.

14. LOCAL GOVERNMENT DEVOLUTION AND REGIONAL 
GOVERNMENT 

Attendees considered a request from by Richard Jarman: The combined 
authority proposals sought harmonisation (the wording falls short of 
amalgamation) of all licensing functions. Discussion of this and 
participation may be appended to the trade meetings / consultation 
structure. 

Attendees commented that the talk of harmonisation was possibly more 
aspirational than immediately practical.

RESOLVED:

That the discussion be noted.

15. TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 

Agenda Item 5

Page 22



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE SPOKESPERSONS 
WITH REPRESENTATIVES OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE TRADE- TUESDAY 26TH JANUARY, 2016

7

Attendees considered a request from by Richard Jarman: It was 
usually overlooked that a Private Hire Vehicle (PHV) was a private car 
licensed for hire and reward with NO privileges (although by an 
anomaly locally a PHV may use a bus lane).  The item dealing with 
stands showed the need for continuing information and education – a 
process universal elsewhere in any event. Provision for updates should 
be available in the new budget structure – whether by email, internet or 
printed format (as had been the case in the past). It was not sufficient 
for a particular PHV operator to stand aloof. Even some hackney 
carriage drivers with an NVQ thought a local Council could restrict PHV 
numbers. 

Key matters to be educated upon should be:

• do not park facing against the traffic flow

• stop as close as you can to the side

• do not stop too close to a vehicle displaying a Blue Badge: 
remember, the occupant may need more room to get in or out

• you MUST switch off the headlights and fog lights

• you MUST apply the handbrake before leaving the vehicle

• you MUST ensure you do not hit anyone when you open your door. 
Check for cyclists or other traffic

• it is safer for your passengers (especially children) to get out of the 
vehicle on the side next to the kerb

• put all valuables out of sight and make sure your vehicle is secure

• lock your vehicle. 

You MUST NOT stop or park on:

• a pedestrian crossing, including the area marked by the zig-zag 
lines (see Rule 191)

• taxi bays as indicated by upright signs and markings

You MUST NOT park on a road at night facing against the direction of the 
traffic flow unless in a recognised parking space. 

Cars, goods vehicles not exceeding 1525 kg unladen weight, invalid 
carriages, motorcycles and pedal cycles may be parked without lights on 
a road (or lay-by) with a speed limit of 30 mph (48 km/h) or less if they 
are:

• at least 10 metres (32 feet) away from any junction, close to the 
kerb and facing in the direction of the traffic flow

• in a recognised parking place or lay-by.

Laws RVLR reg 24 & CUR reg 82(7)

Agenda Item 5

Page 23



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE SPOKESPERSONS 
WITH REPRESENTATIVES OF THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE TRADE- TUESDAY 26TH JANUARY, 2016

8

Bus stops:
It was an offence to stop at a bus stop; however, the Traffic Signs 
Regulations and General Directions 2002 contain an exemption for 
taxis (defined as HCVs not PHVs).

Attendees suggested that these matters were matters relating to the 
observance of the Highway Code. It would not be appropriate for 
the Licensing Department to lead / educate on such matters. If such 
information was contained in the Handbook it would become 
unnecessarily unwieldy.

RESOLVED:

That the discussion be noted.

16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

Further to the meeting of the meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee held on 25 January, 2016, Joseph Johnson requested an 
update on the status of the Taxi Licensing Reserve Account and the 
recovery costs that the Council incurred in fulfilling its licensing function. 
He added that the relevant officer should be held responsible. He asked if 
a report could be presented to the Trade Working Group meeting.

Attendees explained that the matter had now been addressed and the 
error was being appropriately dealt with. 

Richard Jarman added that he would like to consider the below ‘matters 
arising from the 27 January 2015 Minutes at the next Trade Group 
meeting:

• Enforcement Statistics -  Inspections and Mitigations 

• Handbook Review 

• Lifetime Rules for E7 Vehicles 

• The Knowledge Test - Should it last a lifetime -Similar to 
Vocationally Related Qualification (VRQ)? 

• Testing Stations 

• Taximeters

RESOLVED:

That the Principal Trading Standards Officer be requested to liaise with the 
Chief Finance Officer to produce a report for the next meeting of the Trade 
Group.

Agenda Item 5

Page 24



Sefton Council Knowledge Test – Revised December 2015 
Questions Only 

 

 

No Route  

 

1 

Lord Street, Southport to 
Southport Old Links Golf Club 

 

 

2 

Scarisbrick Hotel (front entrance) 
to Formby Hall Golf Resort and 
Spa 

 

 

3 

Southport Train Station to Botanic 
Gardens, Southport 

 

 

4 

Formby Train Station to The 
Pinewoods Pub 

 

 

5 

Waterloo Train Station to Burbo 
Bank Beach Car Park (old 
Coastguard Station) 

 

 

6 

Asda Superstore Bootle to Hatton 
Hill Road, Litherland 

 

 

7 

Old Christ Church, Waterloo to 
Asda Superstore, Bootle 

 

 

8 

Santander, Bridle Road (old 
Girobank) to Bootle Town Hall 
(Trinity Road entrance) 

 

 

9 

Oriel Road Railway Station To 
HMP Liverpool (Formally Walton 
Prison) 

 

 

10 

Marian Square Shops to Strand 
Shopping Centre (Stanley Road 
entrance) 

 

 

11 

Sefton Drive, Maghull To Maghull 
Railway Station 

 

 

12 

Bootle New Strand Train Station 
to Liverpool FC Stadium Store 

 

 

13 

Punchbowl Inn Sefton To The 
Frank Hornby Public House 
(Formally The Everest) Maghull 

 

 

14 

Holy Family Catholic School 
Thornton to Crosby Town Hall 

 

 

15 

Crosby Lakeside Adventure 
Centre to McDonalds, Aintree 
Shopping Park 

 

 

16 

Aintree Racecourse to Alder Hey 
Hospital (drop off point) 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 25



Sefton Council Knowledge Test – Revised December 2015 
Questions Only 

 

 

 

17 

Asda Superstore Aintree to 
Rainbow Drive Melling. 

 

 

18 

Litherland Sports park  to 
Sandhills Train Station 

 

 

19 

The Frank Hornby Public House 
(formerly The Everest), Maghull to 
HM Prison Liverpool (formerly 
Walton Prison). 

 

 

20 

Bootle Golf Club to Knowsley 
Safari Park. 

 

 

21 

Dodds Lane/Northway, Maghull to 
McDonalds, Kirkby Town Centre  

 

 

22 

Bootle Town Hall (Trinity Road 
Entrance) to Arrowe Park Hospital 

 

 

23 

Maghull Town Hall to Ormskirk 
and District General Hospital 

 

 

24 

Southport Municipal Golf Course 
Club House to the Thatch and 
Thistle Pub Southport 

 

 

25 

Crosby Leisure Centre To 
Waterloo Railway Station 

 

 

26 

The Salt Box Pub To Marine 
Football Club 

 

 

27 

Strand Shopping Centre (Stanley 
Road) To Alder Hey Children's 
Hospital (drop off point) 

 

 

Part 2: Places 

Identify the location of these places i.e. main street or road name.   

Please try to state the main street/road name off which any official entrance or a 

‘drop off’ point or car park is available (where applicable).  Some places may have 

more than one valid answer (only one correct answer is required in the answer). 

1.  Clock View Hospital, Liverpool  

2.  Al-Rahma Mosque, Liverpool  

3.  Lime St Station (drop off point)  

4.  Pontins Holiday Park, Ainsdale  

5.  Little Theatre, Southport  

6.  Our Lady of Lourdes Church, 
Southport 

 

7.  Epstein Theatre, Liverpool  

Agenda Item 7

Page 26



Sefton Council Knowledge Test – Revised December 2015 
Questions Only 

 

 

8.  The Cross House Inn, Formby  

9.  St Luke’s Church, Crosby  

10.  The Black Horse Pub, Walton  

11.  Kingfisher Business Park  

12.  Thomas Rigby’s Pub, Liverpool  

13.  Tesco Extra Superstore, Toxteth  

14.  Liberty Atlantic Point, Student 
Accommodation, Liverpool 

 

15.  Slug and Lettuce Pub, Liverpool  

16.  Plaza Community Cinema, Crosby  

17.  North Liverpool Academy  

18.  New Running Horses Pub, Maghull  

19.  Natwest Bank, Formby  

20.  Everton Park Sports Centre  

21.  Liverpool Cricket Club  

22.  Liverpool Womens Hospital  

23.  Lady Lever Art Gallery, Wirral  

24.  The Salt Box Pub, Litherland  

25.  Liverpool Football Club Stadium 
Store 

 

26.  Cheshire Lines Inn, Southport  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Final outcome of Reserve Account Review
	5 Feedback from Spokespersons meeting
	7 Knowledge Test

